
GOVERNMENT NOTICES GOEWERMENTSKENNISGEWINGS

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE DEPARTEMENT VAN LANDBOU

No. R. 77

3 February 2006

LIQUOR PRODUCTS ACT, 1989

(ACT No. 60 OF 1989)

REGULATIONS : AMENDMENT

The Minister of Agriculture has, under section 27 of the Liquor Products Act, 1989 (Act No. 60 of 1989), made the regulations in the Schedule.

SCHEDULE

Definition

1. In this Schedule "the Regulations" means the regulations published by Government Notice No. R. 1433 of 29 June 1990, as amended by Government Notices Nos. R. 838 of 19 April 1991, R. 2841 of 29 November 1991, R. 2079 of 24 July 1992, R. 2593 of 11 September 1992, R. 2791 of 2 October 1992, R. 3152 of 20 November 1992, R. 1376 of 30 July 1993, R. 2350 of 10 December 1993, R. 356 of 25 February 1994, R. 636 of 8 April 1994, R. 1022 of 27 May 1994, R. 2242 of 23 December 1994, R. 394 of 17 March 1995, R. 1695 of 30 November 1995, R. 1876 of 8 December 1995, R. 501 of 29 March 1996, R. 1038 of 8 August 1997, R. 1141 of 29 August 1997, R. 833 of 26 June 1998, R. 1078 of 28 August 1998, R. 70 of 22 January 1999, R. 672 of 28 May 1999, R. 951 of 6

August 1999, R. 21 of 12 January 2001, R. 678 of 27 July 2001 and R. 343 of 7 March 2003.

Amendment of regulation 9 of the Regulations

2. Regulation 9 of the Regulations is hereby amended by -

- (a) the substitution for the expression "Husk brandy" in column 2 opposite item 1 in column 1 of the table in subregulation (1) of the expression "Husk spirit"; and
- (b) by the insertion of the expression "Premium husk spirit" before the expression "Pot still brandy" in column 2 opposite item 1 in column 1 of the table in subregulation (1).

Substitution of regulation 11 of the Regulations

3. The following regulation is hereby substituted for regulation 11 of the Regulations:

"Requirements for husk spirit [7(1)(b);27(1)(a) en (d)]

11. Husk spirit shall -

- (a) be produced -

- (i) from fermented grape husks, including the **lees** thereof, that are distilled directly by means of steam or after water has been added thereto, at not higher than **86** per cent of alcohol by volume; or
 - (ii) by the redistillation of the distillate referred to in subparagraph (i), at not higher than **86** per cent of alcohol by volume;
- (b) not contain more than 10 gram of methanol per litre absolute alcohol;
 - (c) contain at least 1,4 gram of volatile constituents other than methanol and ethanol per litre absolute alcohol; and
 - (d) have an alcohol content of at least 43 per cent."

Insertion of regulation 11A in the Regulations

4. The following regulation is hereby inserted after regulation 11 of the Regulations:

"Reaquirements for premium husk spirit [7(1)(b);27(1)(a) en (d)]

11A. (1) Premium husk spirit shall –

- (a) be produced from fermented grape husks, including the **lees** thereof, which are double distilled, first in a pot still **and**

- thereafter in a rectifying column, directly by means of steam or after water has been added thereto, at not higher than 86 per cent of alcohol by volume;
- (b) ~~be~~ matured by storage for a period of at least three months, but not ~~more~~ than six months, in oak casks -
- (i) with a capacity of not more than ~~700~~ litres; and
- (ii) which were previously used for the fermentation or maturation of wine;
- (c) not ~~contain more~~ than 10 gram of ~~methanol~~ per litre absolute alcohol;
- (d) contain at least 1,4 gram of ~~volatile~~ constituents other than methanol and ethanol per litre absolute ~~alcohol~~;
- (e) have an alcohol content of at least 40 per cent; and
- (f) be approved by the administering officer as a spirit that -
- (i) has the distinctive sensory characteristics of premium husk spirit; and

- (ii) in respect of appearance, flavour, taste, character and composition, is ~~clearly~~ distinguishable from pot still brandy referred to in regulation 12, brandy referred to in regulation 13 and vintage brandy referred to in regulation 14.

(2) The customs and excise requirements and prescriptions for a pot still for the production of a pot still brandy referred to in regulation 12, applies to a pot still referred to in subregulation (1)(a)."

Amendment of regulation 18 of the Regulations

5. Regulation 18 of the Regulations is hereby amended by the substitution for paragraph (b) of the following paragraphs:

- "(b) not have ~~any~~ distinctive characteristic, aroma, taste or colour; and
- (c) have an alcohol content of at least 43 per cent."

Amendment of regulation 19 of the Regulations

6. Regulation 19 of the Regulations is hereby amended by -

- (a) the substitution for paragraph (b) of subregulation (1) of the following paragraph:

"(b) have the distinctive taste and aroma which is characteristic of rum and which is clearly distinguishable ~~from~~ that of cane spirit or another class of spirit; and";

(b) the substitution for subregulation (2) ~~of~~ the following subregulation:

"(2) The volatile constituents in rum shall be at least 30 gram per hectolitre absolute alcohol."

Amendment of regulation 33 of the Regulations

7. Regulation 33 ~~of~~ the Regulations is hereby amended by -

(a) the substitution for paragraph (e) of subregulation (1) of the following paragraph:

"(e) The expression "contains sulfites", "contains sulphites" or "bevat sulfiete" in the case of wine.";

(b) the substitution for paragraph (d) of subregulation (2) of the following paragraph:

"(d) The indication of the expression "contains sulfites", "contains sulphites" or "bevat sulfiete" on a label is only required -

- (i) in respect of wine bottled after a date determined by the administering officer ; and
- (ii) if sulphur dioxide occurs in that wine in a concentration of more than 10 milligram per litre, measured as total sulphur dioxide."

Amendment of regulation 35 of the Regulations

8. Regulation 35 of the Regulations is hereby amended by the insertion of the following proviso at the end of paragraph (c) of subregulation (1):

"Provided that the designation "husk brandy" can be used in the place of the designation "husk spirit" in the case of a husk spirit bottled and labelled before 31 December 2006;"

Amendment of regulation 45 of the Regulations

9. Regulation 45 of the Regulations is hereby amended by the substitution for paragraph (b) of subregulation (2) of the following paragraph:

"(b) Two specimens of the labels on a container referred to in paragraph (a)(ii) shall be filed together with the applicable application in terms of regulation 43 (1)."

Amendment of regulation 47 of the Regulations

10. Regulation 47 of the Regulations is hereby amended by the substitution **for** paragraph (b) of subregulation (1) **of** the following paragraph:

"(b) in the case of a product intended to ~~be~~ imported in the **labelled** containers in which it ~~is~~ to ~~be~~ sold in the Republic, be issued only if the administering officer is satisfied that the labels thereof comply with the **requirements** set out in the Act and these regulations."

Amendment of regulation 50 of the Regulations

11. Regulation 50 of the Regulations is hereby amended by -

(a) the substitution for paragraph (c) of the following paragraph:

"(c) is exported before 1 January 2006 to a country mentioned in Table 12, in the **labelled** containers ~~in~~ which it will be sold to the general public;"

(b) the substitution for paragraph (e) of the following paragraph:

"(e) forms part of a consignment which does not exceed 30 litres ~~in~~ total."

Amendment of regulation 51 of the Regulations

12. Regulation 51 of the Regulations is hereby amended by the insertion of the following paragraph after paragraph (c) of subregulation (4):

“(d) If a person intends to export one consignment of liquor products that differ in container, composition and labeling, one application may be submitted in respect of that consignment, provided the consignment concerned does not consist of more than 100 litres in total.”.

Amendment of regulation 53 of the Regulations

13. Regulation 53 of the Regulations is hereby amended by -

- (a) the substitution for subparagraph (ii) of paragraph (a) of subregulation (1) of the following subparagraph:

“(ii) in the case of wine, the board has, on the basis of the sensorial judgement of the sample thereof or on the basis of other considerations determined by the board in consultation with the administering officer, found that wine to be suitable for export; and”;

- (b) the deletion of subregulation (2).

Amendment of regulation 54 of the Regulations

14. Regulation 54 of the Regulations is hereby amended by the substitution for subregulation (1) of the following subregulation:

"(1) Subject to the provisions of subregulation (2) -

- (a) a product other than wine intended for export in bulk shall be exported within 42 days after the date of issue of the export certificate concerned;
- (b) wine intended for export in bulk shall be exported within 42 days after the date on which it was found to be suitable for export in terms of regulation 53(1)(a)(ii); and
- (c) a product intended for export in containers shall be exported within 90 days after the date of issue of the export certificate concerned, or be exported within the remaining part of the applicable period referred to in regulation 52(7) (b), (c) (ii) or (d) (ii), whichever is the shortest."

Amendment of Table 1 of the Regulations

15. Table 1 of the Regulations is hereby amended by -

- (a) the substitution for the expression "**A**licante Bouschet" of the expression "Alicante Bouschet (Henri Bouschet)";
- (b) the substitution for the expression "Meunier" of the expression "Meunier (Pinot Meunier)";
- (c) the insertion of the expression "Tempranillo (Tinta Roriz)" in the correct alphabetical position;
- (d) the deletion of the expression "Tinta Roriz";
- (e) the substitution for the expression "Touriga Francesa" of the expression "Touriga Franca"; and
- (9) the substitution for the expression "Zinfandel" of the expression "Zinfandel (Primitivo)".

Amendment of Table 2 of the Regulations

16. Table 2 of the Regulations is hereby amended by -

- (a) the insertion of the following paragraph after the paragraph numbered 2 in column 2 opposite item 5 "Late harvest wine" in column 1:

- "3. The residual sugar content of the product may exceed 30,0 gram per litre.";
- (b) the insertion of the following paragraph after the paragraph numbered 11 in column 2 opposite item 6 "Special late harvest wine" in column 1:
- "12. The residual sugar content of the product may exceed 30,0 gram per litre.";
- (c) the deletion of the paragraph numbered 12 in column 2 opposite item 7 "Noble late harvest wine";
- (d) the substitution for the paragraph numbered 2 in column 2 opposite item 7A "Wine from naturally dried grapes" in column 1 of the following paragraph:
- "2. The product shall be produced from must the sugar content of which immediately prior to fermentation is at least 28 degrees Balling.";
- (e) the insertion of the following paragraph after the paragraph numbered 2 in column 2 opposite item 8 "Sweet natural wine" in column 1:
- "3. The residual sugar content of the product may exceed 30,0 gram per litre."

Amendment of Table 4 of the Regulations

17. Table 4 of the Regulations is hereby amended by -

- (a) the substitution for the expression "16,5" in column 3 opposite item 1 "Vermouth" in column 1 of the expression "15,0"; and
- (b) the substitution for the expression "23,0" in column 3 opposite item 1 "Vermouth" in column 1 of the expression "22,0".

Substitution of Table 6 of the Regulations

18. The following Table is hereby substituted for Table 6 of the Regulations:

"TABLE 6

SUBSTANCES WHICH MAY BE ADDED TO LIQUOR PRODUCTS

Name of substance	Liquor products to which substance may be added	Manner and conditions of addition
1	2	3
Acacia/Arabic gum	Wine	This product may only be added after completion or termination of alcoholic fermentation.
Activated animal or vegetable charcoal	Wine (excluding special late harvest wine and noble late harvest wine); alcoholic fruit beverage; spirits (excluding premium hush spirit, pot still brandy and vintage brandy); grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	

Agar-agar	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor	
Allula red A.C.C.I. 16035	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor; unspecified alcoholic fruit beverage	The final product shall not contain more than 100 mg/l of this substance.
Ammonia	Wine	
Ammonium bisulphide	Wine	
Ammonium phosphate	Wine	
Ammonium sulphate	Wine	
Ammonium sulphide	Wine	
Anatto extract C.I. 75120	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 100 mg/l of this substance.
Argon	wine	
Ascorbic acid	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	The final product shall, in the case of wine and a grape-based liquor, not contain more than 150 mg/l of this substance.
Azogeranine C.I. 18050	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 100 mg/l of this substance.
Azorubine C.I. 14720	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 100 mg/l of this substance.
Beetroot red or betanin	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 30 mg/l of this substance.
Bentonite	All types and classes	
Betacarotene C.I. 75130	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 100 mg/l of this substance.
Brilliant Blue FCF C.I. 42090	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 25 mg/l of this substance.
Calcium alginate	Bottle-fermented sparkling wines	

Calcium carbonate	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor	
Calcium hydroxide	Wine; grape-based liquor	
Caramel	Wine (excluding special late harvest wine and noble late harvest wine); alcoholic fruit beverage; spirits (excluding grape spirit, cane spirit, gin, vodka, unspecified spirit and mixed spirit); grape-based liquor and spirit-based liquor	This substance may be added to a liquor product only if – (a) it has not been manufactured by the ammonia process; and (b) it does not contain more than 200 mg/kg of 4-methyl imidazole.
Carbon dioxide	Wine (excluding noble late harvest wine); alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit based liquor	
Carboxy methyl cellulose	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor)	
Casein	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	
Chlorophyll C.I. 75810	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 30 mg/l of this substance.
Citrates of potassium, calcium and sodium	Alcoholic fruit beverage	
Citric acid	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	
Cochineal C.I. 75470	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 30 mg/l of this substance.
Concentrated must	Wine (excluding special late harvest wine, wine from naturally dried grapes and noble late harvest wine); husk spirit, premium husk spirit, pot still brandy, brandy and vintage brandy, grape-based liquor	This substance may – (a) in the case of wine, be added before or during alcoholic fermentation on condition that – (i) it may not be diluted before addition; (ii) the volume of the must to which it is added may not increase by more than 5 per cent as a result of

		<p>such addition; and</p> <p>(iii) the total (actual plus potential) alcohol content of the final product may not increase by more than 2 per cent as a result of such addition;</p> <p>(b) otherwise, only be added after completion or termination of alcoholic fermentation; and</p> <p>(c) in the case of the spirits specified in column 2, only be added to such extent that the sugar content of the final product, calculated as reducing sugar, does not exceed 15 g/l.</p>
Cooldrink as defined in the regulations published under the Foodstuffs, Cosmetics and Disinfectants Act, 1972 (Act No. 54 of 1972)	Spirit cooler	
Copper sulphate	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor	
Dairy products	Grape-based liquor (excluding vermouth and grape liquor); spirit cocktail; cream liqueur	The butterfat content of the final product shall, in the case of cream liqueur, be at least 10,0% by volume.
Dessert wine	Husk spirit, premium husk spirit, pot still brandy, brandy, vintage brandy, whisky, malt whisky and blended whisky	This substance shall only be added to such extent that the total sugar content of the final product, calculated as reducing sugar, does not exceed 15 g/l.
Di-ammonium glycerophosphate	Wine	
Di-ammonium-phosphate	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage	
Dimethyl-dicarbonate	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	The final product shall, in the case, of a spirit-based liquor, not contain more than 100 mg/l of this substance.

Egg albumen	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	
Egg yolk	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	
Emulsifying agents	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	
Enzymes	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor	
Erythrosine BS C.I. 45430	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor) spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 30 <i>mg/l</i> of this substance.
Evaporated milk	Wine	
Filtering aids of inert material	All types and classes"	No undesired residue shall be left behind in the treated product.
Flavourants of vegetable origin or extracts thereof	Husk spirit, premium husk spirit, pot still brandy, brandy, vintage brandy and gin; grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor; alcoholic fruit beverage	The addition of this substance to- (a) a flavoured grape liquor or an alcoholic fruit beverage shall not increase the alcohol content of the product by more than 0,6 percent; and (b) vermouth or a cocktail shall not increase the alcohol content of the product by more than 1.2 per cent.
Flavourants that are nature-identical	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor; alcoholic fruit beverage	The addition of this substance to- (a) a flavoured grape liquor or an alcoholic fruit beverage shall not increase the alcohol content of the product by more than 0,6 percent; and (b) vermouth or a cocktail shall not increase the alcohol content of the product by more than 1.2 per cent.
Fruit pulp of fruit cells	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit cooler	
Gelatine	All types and classes	

Green S. C.I. 44090	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 100 mg/l of this substance.
Gold flakes	Wine; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	
Herbs and natural extracts of herbs	Vermouth	
Honey	Husk spirit, premium husk spirit, pot still brandy, brandy and vintage brandy; grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	This substance shall, in the case of the spirits specified in column 2, only be added to such extent that the total sugar content of the final product, calculated as reducing sugar, does not exceed 15 g/l.
Hydrogen peroxide	Wine	
Ion exchange resins	Alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor	
Isinglass	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor	
Lactic acid	Alcoholic fruit beverage; spirit-based liquor	
Malates of potassium, calcium and sodium	Alcoholic fruit beverage	
Malic acid	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	
Malolactic Fermentation bacteria	Wine	
Meta-tartaric acid	Wine	
Milk	Wine	
Must	Wine (excluding special late harvest wine and noble late harvest wine); husk spirit, premium husk spirit, pot still brandy, brandy and vintage brandy; grape-based liquor	This substance shall, in the case of the spirits specified in column 2, only be added to such extent that the total sugar content of the final product, calculated as reducing sugar, does not exceed 15 g/l.
Nitrogen gas	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor	

Oxygen	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor	
Pectin	Alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor	
Phytates	Wine	
Pimarizin	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor	
Polyvinyl polypyrrolidone	Wine (excluding special late harvest wine and noble late harvest wine); alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	
Poncheau 4R C.I. 16255	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor) spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 100 <i>mg/l</i> of this substance.
Potassium alginate	Wine	
Potassium bicarbonate	Wine	
Potassium bitartrate	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor	
Potassium carbonate	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	
Potassium ferro cyanide	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; spirits; grape-based liquor	In accordance with the provisions of regulation 31(4).
Potassium hydroxide	Alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	
Potassium meta bisulphide	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	
Potassium sorbate	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 200 <i>mg/l</i> , calculated as sorbic acid, of this substance.
Quillaia extract	Rum	The final product shall not contain more than 3 <i>g/l</i> of this substance.
Quinoline yellow C.I. 47005	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 100 <i>mg/l</i> of this substance.

Silicasol	All types and classes	
Sodium alginate	Wine	
Sodium benzoate	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor; alcoholic fruit beverage	The final product shall not contain more than 250 <i>mg/l</i> , calculated as benzoic acid, of this substance.
Sodium carbonate	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; spirit-based liquor	
Sodium chloride (common salt)	Spirit-based liquor	
Sodium hydroxide	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; spirit-based liquor	
Sodium meta bisulphide	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; spirit-based liquor	
Sorbic acid	Wine	The final product shall not contain more than 200 <i>mg/l</i> of this substance.
Spirit derived from any harmless vegetable article	Vermouth; aperitif	The substance concerned shall be a rectified spirit.
Spirit derived from apples or pears	Alcoholic fruit beverage (excluding unspecified alcoholic fruit beverage)	The substance concerned shall be a rectified spirit.
Spirit derived from grapes	Wine (excluding late harvest wine, special late harvest wine, noble late harvest wine and sweet natural wine); grape-based liquor	
Sugar of vegetable origin	Sparkling wines; alcoholic fruit beverage (excluding fortified apple and pear beverage); spirits; grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor and flavoured grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	<p>This substance shall -</p> <p>(a) in the case of sparkling wines, only be added for the initiation of the second alcoholic fermentation and to sweeten the final product:</p> <p>(b) in the case of an alcoholic fruit beverage-</p> <p>(i) be added before alcoholic fermentation only to such an extent that not more than 20 per cent of the fermentable sugars are derived therefrom;</p> <p>(ii) otherwise, only be added</p>

		<p>after completion or termination of alcoholic fermentation to sweeten the final product and to a maximum of 100 g/l, calculated as reducing sugar;</p> <p>(c) in the case of husk spirit, premium husk spirit, pot still brandy, brandy and vintage brandy, only be added to such an extent that the sugar content of the final product, calculated as reducing sugar, does not exceed 15 g/l;</p> <p>(d) in the case of other spirits (excluding gin), only be added to such an extent that the sugar content of the final product, calculated as reducing sugar, does not exceed 1 g/l; and</p> <p>(e) in the case of a grape-based liquor or a spirit-based liquor, only be added to sweeten the final product.</p>
Sulphur dioxide gas	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	
Sunset Yellow C.I. 15985	Grape-based liquor (excluding grape liquor); spirit-based liquor	The final product shall not contain more than 100 mg/l of this substance.
Sweet reserve	Wine (excluding special late harvest wine and noble late harvest wine); grape-based liquor	This substance shall, in the case of wines other than sparkling wines, only be added after completion or termination of alcoholic fermentation.
Tannin if it is not foreign to wine	All types and classes	
Tartaric acid	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage; grape-based liquor; spirit-based liquor	

Tiamine	Wine	
Water	Spirits; grape-based liquor; spirit-based tiquor; alcoholic fruit beverage	
Wood	Wine; spirits (excluding grape spirit, cane spirit, gin, vodka, unspecified spirit and mixed spirit); spirit-based liquor; alcoholic apple and pear beverage	
Yeasts and yeast nutrients if it is not foreign to wine or primarily flavour contributive	Wine; alcoholic fruit beverage".	

Amendn of able 7 of the R

19. Table 7 of the Regulations is hereby amended by the insertion in the correct alphabetical position of the following item:

Name of substance	Liquor products from which substance may be removed	Manner and conditions of removal
1	2	3
"Water	Wine	By means of reverse osmosis."

Amendment of Table 8 of the Regulations

20. Table 8 of the Regulations is hereby amended by the substitution for subparagraph (iii) of paragraph (b) of note 2 of the following subparagraph:

- (iii) not more than 60 mg/l of the sulphur dioxide of wine, excluding red wine, shall be in the form of free sulphur dioxide;"

Amendment of Table 9 of the Regulations

21. Table 9 of the Regulations is hereby amended by the substitution for the entry in column 1 opposite item 5 of the following entry:

- "5. The expression "contains sulfites", "contains sulphites" or "bevat sulfiete" on wine ~~labels~~/Die uitdrukking "bevat sulfiete","contains sulfites" or "contains sulphites" op wynetikette".